ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE JUDI CI ARY STANDI NG COW TTEE
March 6, 2015
1: 02 p. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Gabrielle LeDoux, Chair
Representative Bob Lynn
Representative Matt C aman
Representati ve Max G uenberg

MEMBERS ABSENT

Representative Wes Keller, Vice Chair
Representative Neal Foster
Representative Charisse MIlett

OTHER LEQ SLATORS PRESENT

Representative Liz Vazquez
Representative Harriet Drunmond

COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 79

"An  Act relating to controlled substances; relating to
marijuana; relating to driving notor vehicles when there is an
open narijuana container; and providing for an effective date."

- HEARD & HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 79

SHORT TI TLE: MARI JUANA REG CONT. SUBST; CRI MES; DEFENSES
SPONSCR(s) : JUDI Cl ARY

01/ 26/ 15 (H READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 26/ 15 (H) JUD, FIN

01/ 26/ 15 (H) JUD AT 1:00 PM BUTROVI CH 205
01/ 26/ 15 (H) Heard & Hel d

01/ 26/ 15 (H) M NUTE( JUD)

01/ 28/ 15 (H JUD AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 120

01/ 28/ 15 (H) Heard & Hel d

01/ 28/ 15 (H) M NUTE( JUD)

01/ 30/ 15 (H JUD AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 120

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -1- March 6, 2015



01/ 30/ 15 (H -- MEETI NG CANCELED - -

02/ 02/ 15 (H JUD AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 120
02/ 02/ 15 (H) -- MEETI NG CANCELED - -

02/ 06/ 15 (H JUD AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 120
02/ 06/ 15 (H) Heard & Held

02/ 06/ 15 (H M NUTE( JUD)

02/ 09/ 15 (H JUD AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 120
02/ 09/ 15 (H) -- MEETI NG CANCELED - -

02/ 11/ 15 (H) JUD AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 120
02/ 11/ 15 (H Heard & Held

02/ 11/ 15 (H) M NUTE( JUD)

02/ 13/ 15 (H JUD AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 120
02/ 13/ 15 (H Heard & Held

02/ 13/ 15 (H M NUTE( JUD)

02/ 16/ 15 (H JUD AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 120
02/ 16/ 15 (H) -- MEETI NG CANCELED - -

02/ 18/ 15 (H) JUD AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 120
02/ 18/ 15 (H Heard & Held

02/ 18/ 15 (H) M NUTE( JUD)

02/ 20/ 15 (H) JUD AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 120
02/ 20/ 15 (H Schedul ed but Not Heard
02/ 23/ 15 (H) JUD AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 120
02/ 23/ 15 (H) <Bi |l Hearing Cancel ed>
02/ 25/ 15 (H JUD AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 120
02/ 25/ 15 (H Heard & Held

02/ 25/ 15 (H M NUTE( JUD)

02/ 27/ 15 (H JUD AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 120
02/ 27/ 15 (H <Bi |l Hearing Cancel ed>
03/ 06/ 15 (H JUD AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 120

W TNESS REG STER

LEE PHELPS, Detective

Drug Enforcenent Unit

Juneau Police Departnent (JPD)

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Denonstrated various anounts and forns of
cannabi s regarding HB 79.

KACI SCHROEDER, Assistant Attorney General

Crimnal Division

Al aska Departnment of Law (DQL)

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: During the denonstration of cannabis
answer ed questions regarding CSHB 79.

BRUCE SCHULTE, Board Menber

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 2- March 6, 2015



Coal ition for Responsible Cannabis Legislation

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON  STATEMENT: As spokesman for the Coalition for
Responsi bl e Cannabis Legislation answered questions during the
hearing on CSHB 79.

DENNI S CASANOVAS, Maj or

Deputy Director

Central Ofice

Di vision of Al aska State Troopers

Department of Public Safety

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: During the hearing of CSHB 79, answered a
guesti on.

REPRESENTATI VE HARRI ET DRUMMVOND

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: During the hearing of CSHB 79, asked
gquestions regardi ng neasurenents.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

1: 02: 00 PM

CHAIR GABRIELLE LEDOUX <called the House Judiciary Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 1:00 p.m Representatives Lynn,
Cl aman, Gruenberg, and LeDoux were present at the call to order.

Al so in attendance were Representatives Vazquez and Drumond.

HB 79- MARI JUANA REG CONT. SUBST,; CRI MES; DEFENSES

1: 02: 10 PM

CHAI R LEDOUX announced that the only order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 79, "An Act relating to controlled substances;
relating to marijuana; relating to driving notor vehicles when
there is an open marijuana container; and providing for an
effective date."

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX further announced that the Juneau Police
Departnent (JPD) would denonstrate and offer visuals of various
forms of cannabis, and that the conmittee would not be speaking
to the actual bill.

1: 02: 26 PM

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 3- March 6, 2015



LEE PHELPS, Detective, Drug Enforcenment Unit, Juneau Police
Departnment (JPD), said he was asked to bring marijuana to the
commttee neeting in different forns and weights. [ Thr oughout
his presentation he did not identify which package of cannabis
he was referring.] He held up clear baggies that represented:
one or nore pounds of cannabis; one ounce; one gram five grans;
and seven grans of cannabis.

CHAI R LEDQUX questioned the cost on the street.

DETECTI VE PHELPS replied that one gram of marijuana is roughly
$20, an ounce is roughly $50-%$60, and one-half pound is roughly
$180- $240. He advised that many of the prices vary on how well
an individual knows the dealer as it is not an industry
st andar d.

1: 05: 07 PM

CHAI R LEDQUX asked for clarification that one ounce is roughly
$50- $60.

DETECTI VE PHELPS answered "I believe so, yes."

CHAI R LEDOUX advi sed she had heard that in Anchorage an ounce is
roughly $300.

1: 05: 29 PM

DETECTI VE PHELPS qualified what he had advised the committee by
stating "I don't really deal with marijuana that nuch. M focus
is on heroin, and neth anphetamnes.” He advised that he spoke
with a prisoner in order to understand the different prices. "I
am basing this off of what he told ne." He reiterated $20 per

gram $50-$60 per one-eighth, $100-$120 per one-quarter ounce
$180- $240 per one-hal f pound.

1: 06: 16 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN asked how much is legal for an individual to
possess.

DETECTI VE PHELPHS said he was not sure with the voter initiative
and advised that JPD and the Alaska District Attorney's Ofice
(DA) is waiting to see what to do.

CHAI R LEDOUX advi sed Representative Lynn that it is one ounce.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -4- March 6, 2015



REPRESENTATI VE LYNN held up a package and asked whether anount
in the baggie was | egal .’

[ NO VERBAL RESPONSE. ]

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN asked the cost of marijuana on the street.
DETECTI VE PHELPHS responded that he was not sure.

1: 07:22 PM

DETECTI VE PHELPS answered Representative Canan that the cost
for one-quarter ounce is approximately $100-$120, and one-half
is $180-$200 ounce.

REPRESENTATI VE CLAMAN opined that in referring to one-half
ounces the likelihood of nultiplying the one-quarter by four and
there would be a range of the price for an ounce.

DETECTI VE PHELPS answered in the affirmati ve.

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN said he was passed a note that one ounce is
approxi mately $300 on the street.

DETECTI VE PHELPS offered that Anchorage prices are different
than Juneau prices as they vary and that Juneau is nore
expensi ve.

1:08: 26 PM

DETECTI VE PHELPS denonstrated a one ounce of hash and a baggi e;
plus five grans that was representative of hash oil, and stated
that JPD destroyed all of their recent evidence. He also

presented different pipes to snoke cannabi s and hash.
1: 09: 33 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CLAMAN asked if the pipes were purchased in
stores or seized as property in cases.

DETECTI VE PHELPS said he was denonstrating different pipes that
wer e unused and seized, but no | onger evidence.

1: 10: 02 PM

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 5- March 6, 2015



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noted that under Ravin v. State, 537
P.2d 494 (Al aska 1975), an individual is allowed four ounces in
t heir hone.

DETECTI VE PHELPS advi sed that he was not exactly sure.

REPRESENTATI VE CLAMAN stated that Ravin does not actually
articul ate any guantities, but subsequent | egi sl ation
articulated that four ounces at hone was | egal under Ravin.

1: 10: 43 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked if Ravin is nodified downward by
the initiative so the legal amount is no |onger four ounces but
one ounce.

1:11:24 PM
KACI SCHROEDER, Assistant Attorney General, Crimnal Division

Al aska Departnment of Law (DOL), responded to Representative
Gruenberg that she concurs with Representative Caman in that

Ravin set a small quantity for personal use in the hone.
Subsequent to Ravin, the legislature passed a |law that said four
ounces, and a case after that said "it was reasonable.” The |aw

has been changed several tines since then and the initiative is
currently the |aw which says one ounce or |ess, she explained.
She further explained that the initiative allows for one ounce
of marijuana and six plants for personal use where those plants
are grown. She offered that there appears to be no real limt
in the honme in cultivating and harvesting those six plants.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG assessed that one ounce applies to
processed marijuana rather than the actual |eaf.

MS. SCHRCEDER said "that is correct,” as it is counting plants
and wei ghing the | eafy substance.

1:12: 56 PM

CHAIR LEDOUX remarked that it is at least arguable that if a
person has nore than one ounce of marijuana in their home and no
plants, that the individual would be in violation of the |aw
But, she opined, it is also arguable under the Ravin decision
that the individual mght not be in violation of the |aw She
asked if that was a fair statenent.

M5. SCHRCEDER responded "that is fair."

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 6- March 6, 2015



CHAIR LEDOUX referred to the initiative and stated that clearly
whet her an individual has the plants or does not have the
pl ants, one ounce or less is legal in an individual's hone.

1:13: 51 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CLAMAN noted that it appears Detective Phelps is
nmore involved in heroin and other street drugs, and not so nuch
mari j uana. He questioned Detective Phelps if he has expertise
in terns of marijuana processes and how it is used in different
forms.

DETECTI VE PHELPS said that he spoke wth an inmate who advised
it takes approximately six ounces of marijuana buds to produce
approxi mately one ounce of hash oil.

REPRESENTATI VE CLAMAN surmised that in terms of his regular
work, Detective Phelps is nostly relying on a cooperating
W t ness.

1:15:10 PM

CHAIR LEDOUX confirmed from Detective Phelps that the Iliquid
provided by himis not really hash oil.

CHAI R LEDOUX asked a person does with [hash oil].

DETECTI VE PHELPS provided that it can be snoked even though it
is liquid as it can be mxed with tobacco, or marijuana, or
burned on a piece of netal and the funes snoked.

DETECTI VE PHELPS responded to Chair LeDoux that it can also be
used in cooking as the THC content in oils are nmuch higher than
marijuana. He advised one gramw |l |ast a user between one and
t hree weeks dependi ng upon their tolerance.

1:16: 29 PM

CHAIR LEDOUX referred to concentrates and edibles and asked
whet her the sanple is being used.

REPRESENTATI VE CLAMAN questioned whether the concentration of

THC is the sane fromone oil to the next, or whether it depends
upon manuf act uri ng.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -7- March 6, 2015



DETECTI VE PHELPS responded that the quality of the oil is
different with the various concentrations of THC It depends
upon how the THC is being pulled out of the marijuana plant, how
much butane or CO is used, how nmuch is vaporized off, and the
anmount of THC i s dependent upon the cook, he expl ai ned.

REPRESENTATI VE CLAMAN asked the difference between [hash] oil
and hash.

DETECTI VE PHELPS advi sed he coul d not specul ate.
1:18: 25 PM

CHAI R LEDQUX used the exanple of a cookie that had been around
for two-six weeks, whether it |loses its potency.

DETECTIVE PHELPS said "I would guess not but | am not 100
percent sure."

1:19: 19 PM

BRUCE SCHULTE, Board Menber, Coalition for Responsible Cannabis
Legislation, responded to Chair LeDoux that the shelf [life
depends on whether it is an edible or a raw form product. Many
marijuana products inprove over time as it cures, sonetinmes for
nmonths or a year or nore, he said, and edibles will gradually
di m nish over tinme depending upon how it is stored. It is a

food product so the quality of the food would probably dimnish
at a greater rate than the potency of the THC within, he noted.

REPRESENTATI VE CLAMAN referred to M. Schulte's statenment "that
it would inprove” and questioned whether the value was getting
nore or |ess potent.

MR. SCHULTE responded that the potency would not necessarily
di m ni sh, but the taste would. He explained that when the plant
is harvested there is a brief drying period and then a nore
extensive curing period. He further explained that during the
curing period there are some conplex conpounds that break down
and produce different chemicals that give rise to the
distinctive taste and flavor of different strains of nmarijuana.
He noted that the chemcal break down can last many nonths
depending wupon how it is stored. He then stated that
exceptionally high quality products are often cured for severa
mont hs before they are ready to use and for that reason they are
preferred.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 8- March 6, 2015



1:21:16 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CLAMAN assessed that it was actually a matter of
taste as opposed to potency that he was referring to.

MR. SCHULTE responded in the affirmative and opined that the
percentage of THC is fairly consistent for the first several
mont hs, but after a few years it would start to dimnish due to
a breakdown of chem cal s.

MR. SCHULTE confirmed to Chair LeDoux that he would expect the
potency to go down after a couple of years, whereas the quality
of the product infused would degrade far nore rapidly than the
potency of the infusion itself.

1: 22: 06 PM

CHAIR LEDOUX questioned whether infusion is different than
baki ng.

MR. SCHULTE answered "No," it is a different term nology for the
same process. He offered that he thinks of infusion as a
broader, nore general term that enconpasses different processes,
and not necessarily baking.

1:22:29 PM

CHAI R LEDOUX noted her suspicion that when an individual bakes a
browni es, or cookies, that they put marijuana in as a spice.
She held up a sanple and questioned whether there would be a
needle that infused the sanple into the already manufactured
Her shey or Snickers bar.

MR. SCHULTE related that if they were naking a chocol ate bar,
t he manufacturer would have heated chocol ate that would then be
mxed wth some quantity of hash oil to achieve the desired
| evel of potency, which would then be poured into nolds and
allowed to cool. He explained that it is very sensitive to heat
so manufacturers are careful to control the tenperature as heat
is a key factor in producing edibl es.

CHAI R LEDOUX surm sed that a person would not take an already
manufactured M| ky Way, Snickers or Baby Ruth and stick a needle
into it and infuse it with marijuana.

MR. SCHULTE said that it involves both a process and a
phi | osophy. He stated he would not envision an existing edible

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -9- March 6, 2015



product being sinply injected with hash oil as it would probably
taste disgusting. In terns of philosophy, he renarked, there
has been nuch discussion regarding adulterated products in
taking existing food products with a famliar form and sinply
infusing it wth THC He related that it is not sonmething his
group supports due to the potential confusion over infused
versus not infused products.

1:24: 41 PM

CHAI R LEDOUX confirnmed that while M. Schulte's group does not
support it, theoretically as a process could be done.

MR. SCHULTE answered that she is correct, and his group saw in
Col orado where sone businesses were taking famliar products and
either infusing them or coating them with a mxture that
included THC. He noted that the process received negative press
and lead to sone confusion on edibles in a direction he would
not like to see continue.

CHAI R LEDOUX asked whether the people were sued by the product
manuf acturers that had the original unadulterated products.

MR. SCHULTE said he did not know for certain, but imgined the

conpani es were gearing up to do just that. He stated there was
much public outcry against that practice and opined that it has
been all but curtail ed. Certainly from a regulatory
perspective, that is sonething his group is hoping wll not

happen in Al aska, he further opined.
CHAI R LEDOUX noted that it probably didn't taste very good.
1:26:12 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked if infusion is allowed under the
initiative and bills.

M5. SCHROEDER responded that infusion is not specifically
mentioned in the initiative, but there is nothing prohibiting it
as it reads that a person can nanufacture marijuana products

She said she would have to look at the definition of products
and accessories, but infusion would be decided on a regulatory
basi s.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG requested an answer in the future as to
whether it is prohibited, and whether it should be prohibited.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 10- March 6, 2015



CHAI R LEDOUX advised that M. Schroeder's answer stated it is
not prohibitive.

M5. SHRCEDER responded to Representative Guenberg that she
woul d have to | ook at the definitions to determ ne how broad it
is and believes it is very broad. She advised there is nothing
that prohibits it specifically.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked for clarification that wth a
broad definition it would not be prohibited. In the event, it
is not prohibited, he related that he would l|ike advice as to
whet her the | aw should or should not prohibit it.

1: 28: 28 PM

MR. SCHULTE opined that infusion into the production of edible
products is absolutely contenplated and all owed under the terns
of the initiative. That bei ng said, he offered, he
whol eheartedly agrees that it should be allowed as the manner of
consunption of marijuana has evolved quite a bit. Hash was a
rarity and hash oil was alnobst non-existent [approximtely 30
years ago]. These days, he pointed out, a significant portion
of the consuner base is edibles, oils, and tinctures. He
remar ked he had spoken with nedical patients who could not snoke
the products and consunmed it to keep their appetite up and
mai ntain their body weight. He further pointed out that the
mar ket and habits of consunption are skewed toward edibles and
concentrates.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG questioned his testinony in that
Det ective Phel ps had said that people thought infusion should be
prohi bi t ed.

MR. SCHULTE replied that previously he was referring to the
secondary application of THC to an existing famliar product,
such as, gummy bears.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked for clarification that Detective
Phel ps was speaki ng about one specific type of process, whether
that type of process is now allowed under the initiative, and if
it is, should that limt the type of infusion prohibited.

MR. SCHULTE submitted that the adulteration of existing famliar
products specifically, those that are child friendly, should be
banned.

1: 31: 12 PM

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -11- March 6, 2015



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG questioned if it was permssible to do
that under the initiative.

MR. SCHULTE responded "I believe it is."
REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG of fered to pursue that issue.

MR. SCHULTE reiterated that he was not speaking of all edibles,
just the very narrow i ssue of potential safety of mnors.

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG said he would ascertain whether that
was all owed under the initiative.

1: 31:42 PM

CHAI R LEDOUX asked what type of infusion would be banned under
the initiative

MR. SCHULTE opined that the initiative allows for reasonable
limts on packagi ng, which constitutes packaging. In hoping for
a responsible industry, he agreed that nothing should be
packaged that unnecessarily invites children that could lead to
m suse by those under 21.

CHAIR LEDOUX stated that there must be laws on the books

regardi ng adulterating an existing product. She further stated
that sonmeone cannot take a candy Dbar, and wthout the
manufacturer's permssion, infuse it with vodka or gin. She

remarked there are other health and safety |laws that probably,
with the federal or state governnent, prohibit those actions
al r eady.

MR. SCHULTE replied that he could not agree nore and, if sonmeone
[adul terated] existing products he would expect them to receive
aletter froma lawer in short order.

M5. SCHROEDER responded to Chair LeDoux that the question is
outside of crimnal contacts, although it sounded reasonabl e and
she agreed with M. Schulte.

1:33:44 PM
REPRESENTATI VE CLAMAN observed that there was a distinction
regarding crimnal statutes having to do with possession versus

what may be a regulatory nmatter. He asked what information
should be listed on the labels on the packaging and offered a

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -12- March 6, 2015



scenario of a person that is allowed to have one ounce of hash
oil in their house invites their friends over to dip gumy bears
in the hash oil to eat. He further asked whether the person is
protected under the statute because a person is allowed to do
what they |ike at honme, rather than soneone infusing Hershey
bars that are put in a Hershey bar wapper and sold in a
marijuana store. He said it is a different topic than what
people may choose to do in their hones wth quantities of
marijuana or marijuana derivatives wherein they are allowed to
do "pretty nmuch" what they want to even though it mght taste
bad.

MR. SCHULTE responded that he agrees they are different
considerations in whether it is crimnal or regulatory. He
opined the initiative clearly envisions a comrercial industry
operating under reasonabl e guidelines of packaging and | abeling,
which his group whol eheartedly endorses. In turn, it makes
provisions for cultivation and possession in a person's hone.
He related that the initiative is largely silent as to what one
does with those products in their hone. He surm sed that the
Li bertarian in him would probably ague that is the individual's
right as long as they are not endangering children, but it is
beyond his legal expertise, he said, and the scope of the
initiative. He agreed they are different issues and is not sure
what the proper answer woul d be.

1: 36: 43 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked when Detective Phel ps stops a car
due to suspicion of the person being under the influence of
marijuana, whether that gives him a right to search the entire
car without a warrant.

DETECTI VE PHELPS responded that when a person is pulled over |aw
enforcenment does not know what substance causing inpairnent,
just possibly the person is too inpaired to be driving.
Speaking with the person helps them to ascertain whether it is
al cohol, a nedical condition, or sonething else. He related
that when a person is arrested for being under the influence of
marijuana, |aw enforcenment can search the car because it would
be a search incident to arrest.

DETECTI VE PHELPS responded to Representative G uenberg that |aw
enforcement could not search the trunk of the car, just the
person's imrediate surroundings otherwise it would require a
war r ant .

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 13- March 6, 2015



1: 38: 32 PM

MS. SCHRCEDER replied to Representative G uenberg that Detective
Phel ps and |aw enforcenent are on the ground doing this every
day and his testinony sounded correct but she would check. She
noted there is a l|larger expectation of privacy in one's trunk
than in the body of the car, and there is a safety in the wng
space within a person's reach

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said over the years there has been
"second generation"” legislation in that questions have to be
answered after the initial | egi sl ation, one  of whi ch
generically, is the scope of the search. He requested sonething
in witing on the marijuana sanples before the conmttee, and
what may be different with other drugs and al cohol. He opi ned
it may be simlar to other drugs but there will be nore people
snoki ng and usi ng.

1:40: 29 PM

M5. SCHROEDER responded that the initiative does not change how
the state would investigate or prosecute driving under the
influence as far as search and seizure laws so it would all be
t he sane.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG questi oned paraphernalia possessi on.

M5. SCHROEDER expl ai ned that under the initiative, possession of
par aphernalia alone is not a crine.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG surm sed there i s no probabl e cause.

M5. SCHRODER responded "Right."

1:41: 26 PM

CHAI R LEDOUX asked Dennis Casanovas, Alaska State Troopers, if
he agreed with the responses from Detective Phelps and M.
Schr oeder .

1:41: 44 PM

DENNI S  CASANOVAS, Maj or, Deputy Director, Central Ofice,
Division of Alaska State Troopers, Departnent of Public Safety,

said he does not disagree with the testinony thus far.

1: 42: 25 PM

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -14- March 6, 2015



CHAIR LEDOUX referred to the explosiveness of butane and hash
oil and asked whether hash oil is particularly explosive, or
nor e expl osive than cooking oil or any other oil.

MR. SCHULTE responded that hash oil itself is not explosive as
it is a fairly benign product. He opined that the confusion
could be related to the reference of butane hash oil, which
refers to the oil product and one of nany processes used to
extract it. He pointed out that butane msused is a volatile
and explosive gas, as in aviation fuel, or propane as all are
potentially dangerous. The hash oil itself, properly extracted

and purged of residual butane is not at all volatile.
1:43: 46 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG referred to a "cheat sheet" in the
cormittee nenber's packet and asked why a person would add
but ane to hash oil.

MR. SCHULTZ responded that a person would not deliberately add
butane to hash oil, but residual anpbunts of butane can end up in
the hash oil. He said there is a process of purging butane by
warmng it slightly or putting it in a vacuum chanber to allow
it to off gas and rid it of residual butane. He pointed out
that in a comercial environnent nany operators do not use
butane at all and instead use high pressure CO in a close |oop
extraction system

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked for clarification that the use of
but ane does not nmake it particularly nore expl osive.

MR. SCHULTE replied that the use of butane in the extraction
process does not necessarily make the oil volatile because the
resi dual amounts of butane are neasurabl e but al nbst negligible.
It is the process of extract that has proven to be hazardous and
shoul d be di scouraged, he expl ai ned.

1:45: 33 PM
MR. SCHULTE responded to Chair LeDoux that butane is used for
lighters and there are probably other uses for conpressed butane

that he is not aware of.

CHAIR LEDOUX said in these other uses of butane whether butane
i s dangerous in other processes.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -15- March 6, 2015



MR. SCHULTE answered that the use of butane with nmarijuana is
potentially hazardous because it is done inside with nornal
lighting, light swtches, and cell phones, of which all are
ignition sources and potentially very dangerous. He contends
the best way to dimnish that practice is to ensure there is a
retail industry where a person could sinply go to the store and
buy [hash oil] that is extracted by trained professionals in a
suitabl e environnent using safe equi pnment at a nmuch |ower price
and a better product. Utimtely, he opined, that is the way to
really get at the problem of inadvertent fires from butane hash
oi | extraction.

1: 47:13 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG questioned if it would also be getting
into the area of negligent burning.

MS5. SCHROEDER replied that if a person was to do sonmething in an
unsafe manner that caused property damage or harm to other
people they would be subject to a whole slew of potential
crimnal charges. She said it would be hard to narrow down
exactly which ones they would be charged with as it would be
very fact specific.

1:48: 20 PM

CHAI R LEDOUX noted that the possibility of a $300 fine probably
isn't going to be the thing which tells the person "I can't do
it, we've got a $300 fine to worry about,” when there is the

possibility of blowng up a person's house, blowi ng the person
up, and blow ng children up. Qobvi ously, she further noted, it
would be a good idea to discourage people from attenpting the
but ane net hod through educati on and another [extraction] nethod.
She was not sure that a fine would be the dispositive thing in
sonmeone' s consi derati on.

CHAI R LEDOUX asked the difference between hash and fl owers.

MR. SHULTE responded that he had passed around a small jar with
hash in it.

CHAI R LEDOUX asked if his sanmple of hash oil was the nornal
snell of hash as it snelled cinnanon-y and snel | ed good.

MR. SCHULTE noted that hash oil has a very distinctive snell and

he placed a sanple of dried flowers and hash oil before himin
paral l el . He explained that the two concentrated forns, hash

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 16- March 6, 2015



and hash oil, are derived from the flowers by using different
processes and in each case sonetines several processes are
avai |l abl e. The flower itself is organic and there are small
resin glands on the surface of a nmature female plant which
contains THC baring resins. The goal of both concentrates, he
remarked, is to extract the THC baring resins from the rest of
the organic material and used the analogy of separating the
wheat fromthe chaff.

1:51: 17 PM

CHAI R LEDOUX questioned whether a person purchases a male or a
femal e pl ant.

MR. SCHULTE responded that the fenale plant is the plant that
produces the desirable resin glands, and nmale plants are used
for no purpose other than pollenating the fermale plants. I n
fact, he explained, nost comrercial settings do not want the
femal e plant pollenated because when it is not pollenated it
wi Il produce nore resins. When the female plant produces resin
it is a reproductive response in that the female is trying to
effect pollen fromthe males and if there are no males around it
goes "nuts" in producing resin until it is finally chopped down
and harvested. He described that the males are typically ripped
up and throwmn away and that it is possible to produce only
femal e plants. In a comrercial setting if a person has 100
plants and has ensured that they are all female, a way of
promul gating them is to take cutting from those plants, root
them and generate nore plants. The cuttings largely have the
same genetic characteristics as the original plant, therefore

they are all fenales. He remarked the only tine a person would
want a nmale plant is if they are in the process of devel oping
strains wherein they want to generate seeds and spawn a new crop
by genetically conbining two different strains. A good exanpl e
is the medicinal strain called "Charlotte's Wb" which contains
CBD (Cannabidiol) that has proven to be beneficial regarding
epi | epsy. He noted that sonme narijuana strains are high in THC
and sonme are high in CBD. He explained that THC is a psycho-
active conponent and CBD is the nore nedicinal conponent. He
pointed out that the initiative allows for businesses such as
that and he could envision hard core horticulturists finding the
mar ket in Al aska to develop new strains. The female plant hol ds
very tiny crystals which, he described, are the resin glands
whi ch by now have been dried and cured slightly. He noted that
when the flowers are put into a bucket of ice it causes the
resin glands to be brittle which tend to be heavier than the
rest of the organic material. The resin glands then drop to the

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -17- March 6, 2015



bottom where they are filtered off and dried. He offered that
his sanple is called ice water hash

1:55:10 PM

CHAI R LEDOUX questioned whether that it is a much safer process
t han but ane.

MR. SCHULTE agreed but, he said, butane would be used to extract
hash oil which is why he put the flowers and hash parallel as

they are simlar chemcally, but not the sane product at all. A
person mght use ice water or dry ice to isolate the crystals to
produce hash or wuse another solvent I|ike butane or CQ» to

basically wash the crystals from the |eaf and produce hash oil
Wth regard to Representative Canman's earlier question, he
replied that one would use quantities of the sanple to produce
edi bl e products, although a person can use hash as well. The
sanple could be nmxed in with butter to produce baked products
because it is free of organic material and is not all the |eaf
and cellular structure associated with the sanple.

1:56: 10 PM

MR. SCHULTE responded to Chair LeDoux that the sanple is
actually fat soluble so if it is put in butter, it wll
di ssol ve

CHAI R LEDOUX pointed to the initiative which refers to one ounce
and questioned whether the "green stuff" was neasured in vol une
ounce or a weight ounce, and asked whether the liquid is
measured by weight or a |iquid neasurenent.

MR. SCHULTE stated "I'm not sure,"” typically an ounce of flowers
and a couple grans of hash would be by weight, but he was not
certain.

1: 57: 33 PM

M5. SCHROEDER responded to Chair LeDoux that the initiative does
not distinguish between liquids and solids and how marijuana is
supposed to be weighed. Under the state's current drug
of fenses, nost of the things that are liquid are classified so
high that they are not measured by any anount. For instance

she said, it is against the law to have any amount of certain
things and liquids generally fall into that category. Law
enforcenment is not doing a lot of weighing of liquids which is
why there is a question as to how hash oil should be weighed.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 18- March 6, 2015



She offered that the nbst common way things are weighed right
now i s by mass.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG sai d he thought an ounce, pound, grans

and Kkilogranms are neasurenents by weight, whereas when
di scussing volunmes it could be a teaspoon or tablespoon, cup
gallon and so forth. He questioned whether the |aw uses that

type of neasurenent of "an ounce" to neasure |iquids.

M5 SCHRCEDER reiterated that nost liquids fall into the "any
amount” provision so it does not have to be weighed.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG remar ked that the use of the term ounce
woul d normal Iy be a neasurenent of weight.

MR. SHULTE hesitated to offer a definitive answer due to the
di fference between a neasured ounce and a fluid ounce. He said
he will research the issue and come up with a nore definitive
di stinction.

2:00: 03 PM

CHAIR LEDOUX agreed with Representative Lynn in that wthin
pendi ng marijuana |legislation a commttee should put definitions
into the | anguage.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said things |ike fuel are taxed a
certain amount per gallon.

2:01: 21 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CLAMAN opined that within the Federal Crim nal
Code and possibly the Alaska Crimnal Code that it is weighed by
mass and not by volunme as the nass is easier to be consistent.
He stated that after researching the issue, if it turns out that
weight is not determ ned by nass as opposed to volume it should
be fi xed.

CHAI R LEDOUX asked how much an ounce of hash oil in a liquid
nmeasuri ng cup woul d wei gh.

2:03: 02 PM
REPRESENTATI VE HARRIET DRUMMOND, Al aska State Legislature,
related that one liquid cup has eight ounces of liquid, and an

ounce of water does not weigh an ounce when put on a scale
because a liquid ounce is different from a mass ounce. She

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -19- March 6, 2015



opined that marijuana and its derivatives are neasured by THC
and CBD content.

MR. SCHULTE offered that in commerce the percentage of THC is
rarely discussed, although in Colorado they do |abel wvarious
products for the percentage of THC. He said that a person would
not conduct a transaction other than secondarily as certain
products may be higher in one than the other and it may be a
different price.

CHAIR LEDOUX stated that beer has a different alcohol content
than does vodka or whiskey, but still the transaction is not
offered in al cohol content.

REPRESENTATI VE DRUMMOND related that sonme states have "near
beer” with a very low al cohol content, and noted there is plenty
of beer with a higher alcohol content that begins to approach
hard |i quor.

2: 05: 36 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG pointed to AS 45.75.190 and advised it
is a chapter in the Wights and Measures Act that specifically
di scusses nethods of sale of commobdities and how that should be
measur ed.

CHAIR LEDOUX reiterated that Representative Lynn is correct in
that this area requires clarification and it is this conmttee's
job to determine howto sensibly clarify it.

REPRESENTATI VE CLAMAN said that one gram of water 1is one

milliliter of water in the netric system so one liter of water,
which is 1,000 mlliliters of water weighs one kilogram and a
liter is alnobst the sanme as a quart. Therefore, if you wei ghed

a water bottle and deducted the weight of the bottle it would
wei gh approximately 2.2 pounds and roughly 250 grams of water
equal s one cup.

2:07: 48 PM

MR. SHULTE offered that airplane fuel is nmeasured by pounds and
not by the weight because the volunme varies wth atnospheric
conditions. For purposes of this discussion, there are only two
scenarios where this wll come into play, personal possession
and commercial production. Wen it conmes to personal possession
the question may arise whether the person has an ounce of hash
oil or 1.5 ounces of hash oil. The other circunstance woul d be

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 20- March 6, 2015



at a comercial setting where there may be several gallons of
hash oil because they are producing large quantities of edible
product s. He noted it is not a crimnal issue and nore of a
matter of conmmerce. He agreed it as an issue that should be
nailed down but in practice it actually inpacts this discussion
only in a very narrow circunstance.

CHAI R LEDOUX voi ced her concern for the |aw enforcenent officer
who is thinking of arresting a person based upon a certain
anount of hash oil as it would be a good idea to nmake sure
everyone knows the rules before engaging in the practi ce.

2:10:19 PM

REPRESENTATI VE DRUMMOND referred to the "cheat sheet" and asked
the definition of "keef" and howis it different from hash.

MR. SHULTE responded that keef is a slang term which refers to
the accunulated resin glands known in botanical circles as
triconbs which are not unique to the cannabis plant as nany

pl ants produce them The tiny resinous triconbs can be
extracted through various neans, ice water and/or dry ice
processes. He advised if he was to take a nmture nmarijuana

plant with crystals and glands on it and hang it upside down,
and shake it, the triconbs that fall out onto the table is keef.
If a person gathers themup into a little pile and conpress it,
it becones hash

REPRESENTATI VE DRUVMOND asked whether [the triconbs] falling off
the mature but fresh plant would have a different characteristic
than after it has been dried, or is drying part of the process,
she questi oned.

MR. SHULTE related that keef and hash really do not change that
much even though they do cure. He explained there is a chem cal
breakdown of various products within and that the taste and
snel | changes over tine. He referred to the dried sanple in
front of himand said that due to the way it was extracted, it
was very wet and danp and had to dry for a time and if a person
uses dry ice as an alternative it dries in a matter of hours.

2:12: 21 PM

REPRESENTATI VE DRUMMOND cl arified that hash doesn't really dry
out because it is oil soluble so it is oily.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -21- March 6, 2015



MR. SHULTE responded that it largely does dry but remains
pliable and not very sticky, yet when on the plant it is very
sticky but does dry out a bit. He described it as dense clay
but a little drier, like clay and sand together. He showed an
exanple of a tincture and advised it is fairly popul ar anongst
medi ci nal users. A nedicinal user can take very concentrated
hash oil and dilute it with an alcohol and the tincture can then
be sprayed or dropped into a beverage, he expl ai ned.

MR. SHULTE responded to Chair LeDoux that it could be used
recreationally as well.

2:13: 38 PM

MR. SHULTE responded to Chair LeDoux that the alcohol he
referred to was |ike rubbing alcohol, and very snmall anounts

Definitely not rum or whiskey and, he expressed, he is not
suggesting for a nonent to conbine marijuana products wth
anyt hi ng bought at a package liquor store as it is nore of a
| abor at ory process.

CHAI R LEDOUX described the tincture as a spray as in putting on
per f une.

MR SHULTE said that it is an atom zer
2:14: 42 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CLAMAN referred to keef and asked whether it is
al so cal |l ed shake and bud.

MR. SHULTE said "not exactly,” and referred to sanples in front
of him of which was the core of a flower of a mature plant with
dense l|eaf structure and all of the reproduction conponents of
t he plant. He described that shake is all of the leaf that
falls off of the plant and is nuch lower in potency. I n order
of potency per unit weight there is shake, bud, and hash in
ascendi ng order of potency. Al t hough, he said, if the sanple
was crushed and shaken eventually there would be a small |ayer
of what appeared to be sand which woul d be keef.

2:15:51 PM

MR. SCHULTE said he referred earlier to the different forns of
consunption and the various sanples were bud, |eaf, hash and
hash oil, [and tincture]. He explained that the consunption of
hash oil includes using it in edibles or snoking the oil. A

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -22- March 6, 2015



person could put a few drops on a joint or on a cigarette to
give it a burnable nedi um

MR. SCHULTE responded to Chair LeDoux that hash oil could be put

on a marijuana cigarette or a tobacco cigarette. He then
referred to tobacco E-cigarettes as being the sanme technol ogy
for marijuana consuners. He denonstrated a battery pack from

one such device and said it is notable in two ways in that it
has becone a nore common nethod of consunption, and has very
little residual snoke and uses a diluted form of hash oil as the

conmbustible material . He remarked that he brought it up due to
public consunption being allowed in specific designated areas
and busi nesses. He said it is valuable to consider that E-

cigarettes are a growing nethod of consunption in the marijuana
comunity.

2:18: 05 PM

CHAIR LEDOUX opined that with regard to snoking marijuana,
unless a person takes a drag, inhales it, and pulls it into
their lungs that it doesn't really acconplish its goal. She
guestioned how the E-cigarette vaporizer does any good.

MR. SCHULTE answered that the termnology is msleading in that
it is a vaporizer in the sense that it takes the material, heats
it rapidly to several hundred degrees and vaporizes the oil
whi ch t he person does inhale.

CHAI R LEDOUX qui ered that the person would still have to breathe
deeply and have it in their |ungs.

MR. SCHULTE responded "Yes," in that scenario, whereas with a
tincture a person could spray it on their tongue.

2:19: 24 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CLAMAN referred to the battery pack and advised
is called "vaping,” and that a criticisns of vaping is the
chemcals used in the fluid. He noted that little is known and
vaping is unregulated, so there is an issue of what a person is
actual Iy inhaling.

MR. SCHULTE answered that his question relates to nore than the
marijuana industry as E-cigarettes have lead the way in that
regard. M. Schulte agreed that there are questions about
secondary products, the catalyst, or the vehicle used to deliver

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 23- March 6, 2015



the oil. He offered that he is not an expert in the devices but
coul d research the issue.

REPRESENTATI VE CLAMAN noted if there was a narijuana contro
board that vaping nay be an appropriate subject for regul ation.

MR. SCHULTE agreed that it should be addressed in regulation.
2:21.:28 PM

REPRESENTATIVE LYNN referred to M. Schulte's wealth of
knowl edge and asked whether he took a class to becone so
know edgeabl e.

MR. SCHULTE related that he is not a large consuner in that his
work makes it inpractical because he is drug tested, and stated
that he has friends and he has perforned research.

2:22: 31 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noted that Alaskans are wlling to
di scuss things that in earlier years were controversial.

2:23:29 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CLAMAN referred to "black market" nmarijuana as
opposed to legal narket marijuana and questioned whether M.
Schulte had any suggestions or recomendations that would make
the transition from a black market to a legal market for
mari j uana.

M5. SCHULTE said his group shares the goal of taking an existing
$100 mllion industry in Alaska and noving it to a legitimte
busi ness nodel . In order to encourage that process Al aska
should have a regulatory structure that appropriately addresses
public safety and health, but is not so onerous that it keeps
peopl e out of the industry. The goal is to encourage the casual
participant grower or seller to obtain a permt, file tax
returns and pay excise tax. Keepi ng things reasonable sinple,
he noted, is a huge part of it, plus keeping the cost down. The
initiative identifies a $50 excise tax and, he renmarked, this
i ndustry should not be subsidized by the state. He opi ned that
it can be self-supporting and hopes that the application fees
and permt fees, and so forth, are kept to a reasonable m ninum
In that regard, the legitimte industry would want to
participate and it can conpete effectively wth the black
mar ket. He described it as a fine balance and noted that it may

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 24- March 6, 2015



have to be evaluated through trial and error. He referred to
the IRS rules and banking rules, and so forth, and advi sed that
all of those things taken together could nmeke this business
viable ... a business plan around this industry will dimnish
t he bl ack market. He reiterated that it may take several years
but if the state nmakes it attractive to legitimte businesses
the state will see a huge reduction of the black market.

2:26: 13 PM

CHAI R LEDOUX asked whether M. Schulte had any idea where the
banki ng industry is right now [on the marijuana issue], and
whet her there has there been any novenent on that |evel. [ Her
concern] is that the state will continue to see an industry
dealing solely in cash because it can't put its noney in a bank.

MR. SCHULTE responded that federally it is a problem as
federally insured banks have problens handling anything related
to marijuana. He remarked that his group is hopeful the federal
government wll reschedule marijuana as that would positively
affect many federal |aws around banking rules, IRS rules, and so
forth.

CHAIR LEDOUX noted there is nothing the state legislature can
do.

MR. SCHULTE agreed and offered that Colorado has a state
sponsored bank nodel that is either being inplenmented or very
cl ose to inplenenting.

CHAIR LEDOUX opined that Alaska has the Al aska Commerci al
Fisheries and Agriculture Bank (CFAB), and nmarijuana could be
vi ewed as agriculture.

2:28: 06 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG stated North Dakota is the first and
only state to have an official state bank owned by the state
gover nnent . He opined that Hawaii is looking into doing the
same thing, and that Representative Kawasaki is looking into it
in Alaska. He renmarked that this commttee or another conmmttee
shoul d have a hearing to see what can be done.

CHAI R LEDOUX said she found the initiative process and conmttee
process interesting in that the legislature's feelings have run
the gamut. Even so, she noted, there has been no effort made to
torpedo the process. She opined that everyone believes the

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 25- March 6, 2015



| egi sl ature nust acknow edge the will of the people, and the
peopl e have spoken, and she related she is thankful for her
col | eagues.

[HB 79 was held over. ]

2:30: 26 PM
ADJ OURNVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Judiciary Standing Conmittee neeting was adjourned at 2:30 p. m

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 26- March 6, 2015



